
    

Acme Township Board of Trustees July 01, 2014 Page 1 of 5 
 

     ACME TOWNSHIP BOARD MEETING 

ACME TOWNSHIP HALL 

 6042 Acme Road, Williamsburg MI 49690 

 Tuesday, July 1, 2014, 7:00 p.m. 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER WITH PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AT 7:01 P.M. 

 

  Members present: J. Aukerman, C. Dye, A. Jenema, G. LaPointe, P. Scott, D. White, J. Zollinger 

  Members excused: None 

  Staff present:  J. Jocks, Township Counsel 

                                       N. Edwardson, Recording Secretary 

   

A.  LIMITED PUBLIC COMMENT: None 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  

    

               Motion by White, seconded by Jenema, to approve the agenda with the addition of the Ethics and 

               procedures under Old Business # 4, Motion carried by unanimous  roll call vote. 

 

 B. INQUIRY AS TO CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: None Noted 

 

 C. CONSENT CALENDAR: The purpose is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial items together for 

one Board motion (roll call vote) without discussion. A request to remove any item for discussion later in the 

agenda from any member of the Board, staff or public shall be granted. 

 

1. RECEIVE AND FILE: 

1. Treasurer’s Report  

2. UClerk’s Report  and Balance Sheet  

3. Draft Unapproved Meeting Minutes: 

a. Planning Commission 06/09/14 

b. Zoning Board of Appeals 06/12/14 

4.          Parks and Maintenance Report - Henkel 

            5.         Planning & Zoning Report – Lennox 

           6.         Memo from The Watershed Center dated 6/16/14 re Bayside Park E. Coli 

                       Investigation results 

              2. ACTION – Consider approval:  

1. Township Board  Special meeting minutes of 06/12/14 and Regular 06/03/14 

2. Accounts Payable Prepaid of $2,700.78 and Current to be approved of $43,949.84 

(Recommend approval: Cathy Dye, Clerk) 

 

Scott asked for the special meeting minutes of 6/12/14 to be removed, Jenema the Parks & Recreation Report and 

the Watershed Investigation results, Aukerman asked for the 6/3/14 Board meeting to be removed, and from the 

public a request for the ZBA minutes from 6/12/14. 

 

Motion by Jenema, seconded by Scott to approve the consent calendar with the following removed for 

discussion 

 6/3/14 and 6/12/14 Board meeting minutes 

 Parks & Maintenance Report 

 Watershed Center investigation results 

 6/12/14 ZBA minutes 

             Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote. 

 

 



    

Acme Township Board of Trustees July 01, 2014 Page 2 of 5 
 

D. ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR: 

Scott stated in the 6/12/14 meeting under New Business Item 2 “Potential Funds Allocations for Township fund 

balances”.  He did not think the motion was clear as to what the amount of monies that went into the SAD 

districts and Acme water engineering project. Scott also commented that it was stated at the 6/12/14 meeting a  

question was asked on why he was not present and Scott referred to an email that was sent prior to the meeting 

stating that he would be working and unable to attend.  He wanted it to be made clear that he was working. 

 

Motion by Scott, seconded by Jenema to table the 6/12/14 minutes so that the minutes can be corrected and 

presented at the August meeting for approval.  Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 

Jenema referred to the Parks & Maintenance memo dated 6/24/14.  She asked if Henkel had a schedule for beach 

grooming.  In his memo he states that the areas have been prepped for grooming.  Jenema would hope that this 

could be done with the 4th of July coming up. Discussion. 

 

Motion by Jenema, seconded by Dye to approve the Parks & Maintenance report as presented. Motion 

carried by unanimous vote. 

 

Jenema questioned what the Bayside Park E.coli investigation actually found. She was rather disappointed in the 

report. Jenema did not find any suggestions for improvement. 

 

Motion by Dye, seconded by LaPointe to approve the Watershed Bayside Park e-coli investigation results 

as presented. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 

Aukerman questioned the 6/3/14 minutes under Public Hearings Item #4 Resolution # R-2014-18. Motion by 

Scott did not reflect  if one is being compensated from another  entity, such as Fire Board, a trustee would not also 

get paid by the Township. 

 

Motion by Scott, seconded by White, to approve the 6/3/14 minutes with the correction to Item # 4 under 

Public Hearings. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 

             B. Kelley, asked for the ZBA minutes of 6/12/14 to be removed.  He had a few corrections.  Zollinger stated that 

             ZBA first had to review them.  Minutes were tabled for now. 

 

             Motion by Scott, seconded by Aukerman to table the ZBA 6/12/14 minutes until approval from the ZBA 

             first. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 

E SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS/DISCUSSIONS: None 

  

F. REPORTS: Received and filed 

1. USheriff’s Report – Deputy: Ken Chubb  

C.Walter, Bates Road, asked for the “Speeding Trailer” to be set up on Bates Road as “Horses by the 

Bay” is in full operation. 

2. County Commissioner’s Report – Larry Inman: 

3.  Road commission report-Bill Mouser 

             Zollinger stated that the recent repairs on Hawley Road were around $70,000.00 and Angell Road  

             $20,000.00. 

        

G. CORRESPONDENCE: None 

             

H.          PUBLIC HEARING: None 

  

I. NEW BUSINESS: 

 1.        Appointments to Planning Commission and Advisories 

                        Zollinger prepared a memo of his recommendations for the Planning Commission and advisories. 

                        Wentzloff and Feringa are reappointments and will serve to 2017.  Max Binkley is the new appointment 

 



    

Acme Township Board of Trustees July 01, 2014 Page 3 of 5 
 

                          replacing Bob Carstens, and he also will serve until 2017.  Jim Maitland will serve out the term of Bob 

                          Hopkins, who passed away in January of 2014.  Maitland’s ZBA appointment  will expire in 2015. 

                        

                        Motion by Jenema, seconded by Aukerman, to approve the recommendations as presented. 

                        Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 

             2.        Presentation of Sewer Review – Clyde Johnson/Gosling Czubak 

           Clyde Johnson, Gosling Czbuk, reviewed the Master Sanitary Sewer Study Phase I. Johnson stated there  

           are two components to evaluating a sanitary sewer system; the first is examining the infrastructure and 

                        determining capacities of the pipes and pump stations. The second is examining the usage distribution 

                        and placing usage in the appropriate position on the appropropriate line. Zollinger wanted the Board to 

                        be aware of the current situation as this is the first time we have looked into this issue. Discussion 

                        followed. 

                           

 3.        Blue Water Trail Resolution/ Signs 

                        Timmons Chair of the Parks & Rec advisory was present to address any issues or concerns. She said the 

                        following locations in Acme Township will be supported by the Blue Water Trail, Bunkerhill Rd at U.S. 

                        31, Bayside Park, Sayler Park  Boat Launch. The trail will be open to the public use for a minimum of 10 

                        consecutive years, access points must be open to the public use, designed, constructed and maintain 

                        according to the best management practices and the trail is in compliance with land use plans and 

                        environmental issues. 

                        Timmons also talked about signage for the trails.  We do not have to implement tonight. Timmons will be 

                        meeting with the conservancy in August with Jennifer Jay for a full review of what is available.  There are 

                        small signs stating “Entrance” or “Exit” that range in price from $100-$150. Timmons said that the Parks  

                        & Rec advisory have monies in the Sayler Park Boat Launch fund for signs and will be using those monies  

                        to begin with. 

 

                        Motion by Scott, seconded by Jenema, to approve Resolution # R-2014-23 showing support of the 

                        Blue Water Trail – Chain of Lakes Water Trail. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 

             4.        Approval of Horse Sports Park Special Use Permit 3014-07 

            Lennox, Township Zoning Adminstrator, was present to review the Horse Sports Special Use Permit. 

                        The request by Special use permit would allow for weddings, birthday parties and other similar events. 

                        The Planning Commission recommended approval with eight conditions. 

 Signage shall meet all of the requirements of the sign provisions, with variance 

 Applicant may hold not more than 12 events for which applicant receives any form of 

compensation per calendar year 

 Any function will cease operation by 11:30 p.m. If music is involved during the event the music 

will cease by 10:30 p.m. 

 Food preparation will be done off-site or in Flint fields commercial kitchen 

 Tents, chairs, tables and portable toilets shall be removed no later than the following business day 

 Power generators can be used, but the site plan should note where generator cannot be located 

based on a radius of 750” from adjacent homes. 

 The township Zoning Administrator shall be notified at least two weeks in advance when an event 

will take place and confirm receipt of the notification back to Ms. Karin Flint, or any future 

property owner. 

 Code related issues addressed by the Grand Traverse County Construction Code Department and 

MESA shall be satisfied prior to holding any event under this permit 

 

                         Motion by LaPointe, seconded by Scott, to approve Special Use Permit 2014-07 with eight 

                         conditions (listed above) and one modification to condition number three that music/voice amplifer 

                         sound system stops at 10:30 pm.  Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 

             5.        Consumers Power Upgrade Project Fall of 2014 in Acme Township 

                         Zollinger reviewed a Consumers Power Upgrade project slated for the Fall of 2014.  This will be a line up 



    

Acme Township Board of Trustees July 01, 2014 Page 4 of 5 
 

                         grade by Consumers: Project Boardman to Acme HVD line.  Work will follow existing line and require 

                         some pole replacements with spans of about 350 feet.  A public meeting will be held for those affected. 

 

             6.         Noxious weeds and unkept lawns/tall grass 

             LaPointe had raised concerns about unkept lawns/tall grass in some commercial areas in the township. 

                         He has discussed it with Lennox, Zoning Administrator and she will draft an ordinance.  LaPointe would 

                         like the Acme Business Association to review it and then back to the Board for review. 

                          

             7.         Farmland Open Space Preservation 2014 Ballot language 

             McDonough, Bourdages from the Grand Traverse Regional Land conservancy and Acme Township  

                         resident, John Zaloudek, were present to support the approval and resolution of the ballot language for the 

                         Farmland and Open Space preservation millage renewal in the November general election. Zaloudek will 

                         advocate with Acme electorate to vote “yes” on the ballot question. The proposal is  to levy a property tax 

                         of up to 0.73 mills that would cost the owner of a home with a taxable value of $100, 000.00, $73.00 per 

                        . year. 

                         White reclused himself from voting as he has property in the next round of applications. 

 

                         Motion by Jenema, seconded by Aukerman, to approve Resolution # R-2014-24, adopting the 

                         Millage ballot language for the purchases of Farmland and Open Space Development rights. 

                         Motion carried by a roll call vote of 6 in favor (Aukerman, Dye, Jenema, LaPointe, Scott, Zollinger) 

                         and 1 abstaining (White) 

                          

J.      OLD BUSINESS: 

           1.        Status of possible New Township Community center/firehouse 
                      Ken Crawford, Acme Township resident and a member of the Acme study team looking into a new 

                      Township Hall/Community center/Firehouse read the draft progress report dated June 18, 2014. The 

                      Study team is requesting that the Board agree to allow the team to further investigate and return with 

                      possible options and finance models for Board consideration. Trustee, Scott, also felt it important to look 

                      into what could be done and the cost to the current building after the fire station has moved on.  

 

                       Motion by White, seconded by Scott to approve further studies regarding  a new township hall/ 

                       Community center and firehouse.  Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 

            2.       Discussion on Board meeting frequency 

          Zollinger stated that there has been discussion about having two meetings; one could take care of the 

                      business of running the township; paying bills, approving minutes, resolutions, etc. and the second 

                      meeting could be study sessions.  Scott stated he had major concerns with having two meetings.  His first 

                      question was “What have we missed doing or paying?” Dye commented that we have not missed paying  

                      anything but what we have missed is study sessions. Study sessions where time is not an issue and 

                      there is time for thoughtful deliberation.  LaPointe stated he would prefer two monthly meetings lasting two 

                      hours or less.  Discussion followed. 

                       

                      T. Phillips, 2986 Wild Juniper Trails, commented that he was one that wanted to see two meetings thinking 

                      it would help Scott out. 

 

                      Motion by Scott, seconded by White, to  maintain the monthly meeting schedule as is, one a month. 

                      Motion failed by a roll call vote of 2 in favor (Scott, White) and 5 opposed (Aukerman, Dye, Jenema, 

                      LaPointe, Zollinger) 

 

                      Additional discussion followed.  Jocks stated that a resolution would have to be drawn up stating the change 

                      in meeting schedules.   No changes until the resolution is approved. 

 

                      Motion by LaPointe, seconded by Dye,  for staff to  draft up a resolution for a potential second 

                      meeting to  be discussed and voted on at the next meeting.  Motion carried by a roll call vote of 5 in 

                      favor (Aukerman, Dye, Jenema, LaPointe, Zollinger) and 2 opposing (Scott, White) 

 



    

Acme Township Board of Trustees July 01, 2014 Page 5 of 5 
 

                     

            3.       Discussion on video taping of Board meetings 

                      B. Kelley, a township resident volunteered to gather information on various ways and cost to video tape  

                      Board/PC meetings.  He will present at a later date. 

 

            4.       Ethics and Procedures 

                      Dye recently sent out a email with some procedures for conducting a meeting.  She is looking for input from 

                      the Board and then having a study session.  

                      Scott suggested a motion to have a special meeting to approve current bills and also a work session on 

                      ethics and procedures.   Discussion followed. 

   

        P. Runhaug, expressed displeasure with Zollinger, not being “fair minded” about setting a date for a second 

                      meeting. 

 

                      Motion by Scott, seconded by Dye to set a date for an additional July meeting.  Motion carried by a 

                      roll call vote  of 5 in favor (Aukerman, Dye, Jenema, LaPointe, Scott) and 2 opposing (White, 

                      Zollinger) 

                       

                      Following additional discussion a date of Tuesday, July 22, at 6:30, for a special Board meeting was set. 

                      The two items on the agenda will be checks to be approved and work session on ethics procedures.  

 

 PUBLIC COMMENT & OTHER BUSINESS THAT MAY COME BEFORE THE BOARD: None 

           

 

            Adjourn at 10:35 p.m 



If you are planning to attend and are physically challenged, requiring any special assistance, please notify Cathy Dye, Clerk, within 24 
hours of the meeting at 938-1350. 

U      ACME TOWNSHIP REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

ACME TOWNSHIP HALL 

 6042 Acme Road, Williamsburg MI 49690 

 Tuesday, July 1, 2014, 7:00 p.m. 
 

 

 

UGENERAL TOWNSHIP MEETING POLICIES 

A.       All cell phones shall be switched to silent mode or turned off. 

B.       Any person may make a video, audio or other record of this meeting. Standing equipment, 

             records, or portable microphones must be located so as not to block audience view. 

 

CALL TO ORDER WITH PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

ROLL CALL  

     

A.  LIMITED PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Public Comment periods are provided at the beginning and end of each meeting agenda. Members of the public 

may address the Board regarding any subject of community interest during these periods. Comment during 

other portions of the agenda may or may not be entertained at the moderator’s discretion.  

 

 B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  

 

 C. INQUIRY AS TO CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: 

 

 D. CONSENT CALENDAR: The purpose is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial items 

together for one Board motion (roll call vote) without discussion. A request to remove any item for 

discussion later in the agenda from any member of the Board, staff or public shall be granted. 

 

1. RECEIVE AND FILE: 

a. Treasurer’s Report  

b. UClerk’s Report  and Balance Sheet  

c. Draft Unapproved Meeting Minutes: 

a. Planning Commission 6/9/14 

b. Zoning Board of Appeals 6/12/14 

d.      Parks and Maintenance Report – Tom Henkel 

e.      Planning & Zoning Report – Lennox 

f.      Metro Fire Newsletters May and June 2014 

g.      Memo from The Watershed Center dated 6/16/14 re Bayside Park E. Coli  

     Investigation results 

 

        2. ACTION – Consider approval:  

a. Township Board  Regular 6/3/14 and Special meeting 06/12/14 minutes 

b. Accounts Payable Prepaid of $2,700.78 and Current to be approved of  

$43,949.84  (Recommend approval: Cathy Dye, Clerk) 

 

E. ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR: 

 1.        

2.        

3.        

 

F. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS/DISCUSSIONS: 

  

G. REPORTS: 

1. USheriff’s Report May 2014 – Deputy: Ken Chubb 

2. County Commissioner’s Report – Larry Inman: 

3.  Road commission report-Bill Mouser 



If you are planning to attend and are physically challenged, requiring any special assistance, please notify Cathy Dye, Clerk, within 24 
hours of the meeting at 938-1350. 

 

 

 

 

H. CORRESPONDENCE: 

               

I.          PUBLIC HEARING:  

 

J. NEW BUSINESS: 

             1. Appointments to Committees & Advisory-Zollinger 

             2. Presentation of Sewer Review – Clyde Johnson/Gosling Czubak      

 3. Blue Water trail Resolutions for Signs-Marcie Timmons 

 4. Approval of Horse Sports Park special use permit 2014-07-Lennox  

 5. Consumer Power Upgrade Project in Acme Township fall 2014-Zollinger 

 6.  Noxious weeds and unkept lawns/Tall grass Ordinance 

             7.          Farmland Open Space Preservation 2014 Ballot language  

          

                 

K.      OLD BUSINESS: 

 1. Status of possible New Township Community center/Firehouse 

             2.          Discussion on Board meeting frequency 

             3.          Discussion on various ways to Video Board meetings and cost factors        

 

                         

 

 PUBLIC COMMENT & OTHER BUSINESS THAT MAY COME BEFORE THE BOARD:  

 

 

ADJOURN 

 

 







































































  DRAFT UNAPPROVED 

Acme Township Zoning Board of Appeals June 12,, 2014 Page 1 of 3 
 

ACME TOWNSHIP 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

June 12, 2014 
Thursday, 7:00 pm. 
Acme Township Hall 

Acme, Michigan 
 

Meeting called to Order at 7:02 p.m. 
 
Members present: J. Kuncaitis (Chair), L. Belcher,   L. LaSusa, T. Forgette  
Members excused: None 
Staff present:  N. Lennox; Zoning Administrator, Recording Secretary  

 
1. Review and approval of the agenda, inquiry as to conflicts of interest: None 

 
2.   Correspondence: 
   
2.  Hearing:  2014-06Z Variance request for 01-015-005-04. 

 Belcher reads notice in Record Eagle. 
An application by DMK Development, 3597 Henry St Muskegon, MI 49441. The 
property is located at: NE corner of Arnold Rd. and M-72, Zoned B-4 Material 
Processing & Warehousing, for a variance from the requirements of Acme Township 
Zoning Ordinance Article VII, Section 7.5.4 a. Off Street Parking Area Construction and 
Maintenance Standards. All off-street parking shall be constructed in the rear or side 
yards. Applicant is requesting parking in the front of the property.  
 
Introduction: Steve Witte of Netterveld Engineering, Derek Marine of DMK 
Development; Parcel will be split, TSC NE portion of parcel, MDOT dictated drive 
location as did GTCTY Road Commission for Arnold Road.  
Parking per Zoning Ordinance (section 7.5.4 a.) required to be side or rear, unless ZBA 
allows parking to be in the front. M-72 100’ set- back, and large clear vision area at 
corner, limits ability to use that front 100 foot area, congestion issue and safety if 
parking is in side and rear, truck and loading area on North (rear)side, not a good mix 
with customers in regards to safety.  Other parcels have parking in front, Factory Direct 
floors does.  There is little to no foot traffic on M-72, to have store up front. To minimize 
impacts of parking, natural berm, grade 4-5’ higher than M-72, will be maintained, 
Cherryland Elec. cable interferes in berm area, landscape plan will provide trees and 
shrubs, TSC is providing more than ordinance requires. Went to PC regarding 
appearance, windows, doing best to meet wishes of PC. Kuncaitis; berm; parking will be 
below, yes. Steve Witte describes site, snow removal areas, can use some of the 
parking spaces and island areas. He shows elevations with windows and ornamental 
fencing (white lake example), will submit to PC for next month. 

 
Public Comment Opened 7:15 p.m. 
Brian Kelley: 4893 Ridgecrest, Ann Arbor TSC store, TSC customer, disappointed,  
B-4 new ordinance, new ordinance allows this to be placed in the district, corner, unfit 
in the form they are trying to do it, TSC only builds corporate model, Ann Arbor, 



  DRAFT UNAPPROVED 

Acme Township Zoning Board of Appeals June 12,, 2014 Page 2 of 3 
 

example shows it can work, TSC Chums Corner, trailer storage chained together 
outdoors, other stores stack trailers, store manager could decide to allow that, we 
should check our zoning. Warehouse district is a low key area, Arnold Rd has a nice 
business, should stick to code there, TSC created their own hardship, they cut it up so 
they don’t have to conform. Staff report Sec 9.2 conditions have to be met, intent, 
adequate parking so that neighboring parcels will not be effected, if its granted, 
subsequent properties will probably ask for same variance, John I stated at the PC 
there will be 4 parcels having cross traffic, shared, adjacent properties will be 
negatively impacted, same as item C, will effect property values, critical such as set- 
back, will impact other properties (E), special conditions, item A, act of applicant, 
division of lot has violated this by reserving it for future development. 
 Jim Nells 8766 Red Pine Dr. Lake Ann. 

Across from golf course, corner very high, following Meijer development, grew up 
in TC, Chums corner, Acme township paying attention to zoning, done a good job 
making plans, will look alright, gone by property, berm, most of property won’t be 
visible from road, I like the idea of a big setback from the road, look at case by case to 
see if it fits. He has checked the Chums Corners store. The Acme store corner is high.  
Meijer will be built here, the M-72 highway has a berm, he’s surprised it won’t be visible 
from the road, he likes the set-back idea and doesn’t see a problem. Should look case 
by case for exceptions. He has been to TSC’s all over and doesn’t see a problem as 
long as they meet the conditions, its fine.  

 Correspondence: N.W. Mich. Contracting 6209 Arnold Rd.  They are in favor of 
variance and allowing parking in front.  Problems with clear vision area in front, safety 
issues and turning onto M-72. 
Closed: 7:35 p.m. 

 Board discussion regarding parking in an urban situation, what is the reason for 
parking in front?  Steve Witte, my opinion buildings are up front for walk-ablilty, not in 
rural areas, in cities yes.  Lennox adds about parking standards, they are not specific to 
B-4, doesn’t know why parking standards require front and side in B-4, no one else in B-
4 does. Larry Belcher, yes it could set a precedence, why do we have this?  Lennox, 
unknown, when and why it was created and what for.  Steve Witte, M-72 is a busy road, 
parking in front helps safety issues, and by allowing it by approval of ZBA in the parking 
ordinance is something he has not seen before, maybe something previous was 
identified. Kuncaitis, MDOT, will they ever have a light there, no, maybe roundabout at 
casino.  Kuncaitis, address?  My impression is that if Arnold Rd is address, we wouldn’t 
be here, Steve Witte, yes I agree.  Trae; there are a number of businesses that have 
parking in side and rear, the awning place, stone place, Kuncaitis, those businesses are 
closer than 100’ to the road. Trae; I have a problem with some of the basic conditions 
being met, I think the whole district will have to go to this route. Steve Whitte, Wimsatt 
has a private drive, other accesses in area.  Trae; setting example to allow for parking in 
front.  Lennox explains not true, drive for next parcel could go to back and rear, corner 
is not the same. Kuncaitis; if I had a business, I would want building to be in line with 
next business, or 50’ in front.  Lennox explains building placement and parking can still 
be to side and rear, this won’t necessarily set precedence.  Kuncaitis, states building 
could be up front, maybe some will, some wont.  
Trae, if parking ord. followed the way it is… rotation of store, or re-vamp of store, Steve, 
anything is possible, but is it in the public health safety and welfare.  This request is.  



  DRAFT UNAPPROVED 

Acme Township Zoning Board of Appeals June 12,, 2014 Page 3 of 3 
 

Anything is possible, won’t work for TSC, constraints of site, clear vision corner, set-
backs etc. Kuncaitis, ordinance, consistent with health, welfare and safety issue.  
Specifically in this ordinance, may not have to follow basic conditions, looks like it is 
limited to public health safety and welfare (Section 7.5.4 a.), if address is on Arnold Rd, 
there would be no need for the hearing. Concern on all corner lots on M-72. 
Brian Kelly, pedestrian safety, on a highway people turning into parking lot at high 
speed.  In the rear you isolate that.  Larry Belcher; that is what I’m looking for.  
Kuncaitis, things have changed in our zoning, outdoor display wasn’t previously 
allowed, warehouse district, sidewalks? I don’t see bicycle or pedestrian traffic. It has 
evolved, warehouse district, now it has some box store image.   
 

Motion by LaSusa, 7.5.4 Public safety and welfare, 5.4.1 basic conditions A 5.4.2 
meets, Second: Larry Belcher   
Vote: all ayes.  Forgette: no. 
Motion carries as presented. 
Larry Belcher, has the PC re-visited the parking Ordinance, Lennox, maybe should take 
a look at it. Larry why is it like that?  Lennox; goes years back, some we don’t know 
why.  Ord. amendments last year, large set back, no one could not remember why it 
was there. Some are so old, may have had reason back then, not presently.  She will 
ask PC if they would like to review parking ordinance. 
Kuncaitis, look at Whitewater also so we are consistent, the casino and what they are 
doing, how much do we want to follow on M-72 what they are doing. 

 
4.    Approval of minutes from the May 8, 2014, meeting: Motion by Forgette, 
LaSusa. Motion carries to approve the minutes of the May 8, 2014.  

 
 ADJOURNED AT 8:00 pm 
 









PLANNING AND ZONING  
MONTHLY ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT  

 

                                                         JUNE 2014   
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Acme Township Board of Trustees 
FROM: Nikki Lennox/ Zoning Administrator 
 
DATE: 06/23/2014  
 
THE FOLLOWING IS A SUMMARY OF KEY PLANNING, ZONING & ADMINISTRATIVE ACTIVITIES UNDERWAY:  
GENERAL PLANNING & ZONING:  

 
LAND USE PERMITS ISSUED FOR JUNE: 6 residential permits; including 4 new homes 
SIGN PERMITS: 2 temporary event signs 

 
PLANNING & ZONING PROJECTS:  
1. MASTER PLAN UPDATE: A hearing has been scheduled for the Master Plan on June 23rd at 7:00 pm. 

 
2. The Planning Commission heard a site plan request from Tractor Supply Co for a new 19,000 sq. ft. store 

at the corner of Arnold Rd. and M-72. The site request a variance before the ZBA on June 12th for parking 
to be located in the front of the property.  This request was approved.  Tractor Supply Co will be coming 
back to the PC in July to complete the site plan review process. 

 

3. Our Planning Consultant and myself are working with Speedway for re-development of their property 
(presently Rich’s gas) at M-72/US-31 for a new gas station.  

 

  
 

 

 
 
 













































































  DRAFT UNAPPROVED MINUTES  

Acme Township Board of Trustees June 03, 2014 Page 1 of 4 
 

     ACME TOWNSHIP BOARD MEETING 

ACME TOWNSHIP HALL 

 6042 Acme Road, Williamsburg MI 49690 

 Tuesday,  June 03, 2014,  7:00 p.m. 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER WITH PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AT 7:01 P.M. 

 

  Members present: J. Aukerman, C. Dye, A. Jenema, G. LaPointe, P. Scott, D. White, J. Zollinger 

  Members excused: None 

  Staff present:  J. Jocks, Township Counsel 

                                       N. Edwardson, Recording Secretary 

   

A.  LIMITED PUBLIC COMMENT: 

Larry Inman, Ken Hinton and Karen Renney all candidates for State Representative 104th District were present 

and introduced themselves. 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  

    

 Motion by White, seconded by Jenema, to approve the agenda with the addition of the Hoxsie House  2% 

Tribal grant application under Old Business # 1, Item E. Motion carried by unanimous  roll call vote. 

 

 C. INQUIRY AS TO CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: None Noted 

 

 D. CONSENT CALENDAR: The purpose is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial items together for 

one Board motion (roll call vote) without discussion. A request to remove any item for discussion later in the 

agenda from any member of the Board, staff or public shall be granted. 

 

1. RECEIVE AND FILE: 

1. Treasurer’s Report as of  4/30/14 

2. UClerk’s Report  and Balance Sheet as of 4/30/14 

3. Draft Unapproved Meeting Minutes: 

a. Planning Commission 05/12/14 

b. Zoning Board of Appeals 05/09/14 

c. Parks & Rec Advisory 05/14/14 

              2. ACTION – Consider approval:  

1. Township Board  Special meeting minutes of 05/09/14, 05/15/14 and Regular 05/13/14 

2. Accounts Payable Prepaid of $1,985.80 and Current to be approved of $43,621.53  

(Recommend approval: Cathy Dye, Clerk) 

 

E. ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR: 

Dye asked to remove the Current Bills to be approved for an additional invoice  for $6,314.17. B. Kelley, 

Ridgecrest asked that the Board  minutes of 5/13/14 be removed. 

 

Motion by Jenema, seconded by Dye to approve the Consent Calendar with the removal of Current Bills 

under Action Item #2 and Board minutes of 05/13/14.  Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote. 
 

Dye requested an additional invoice of $6,314.17 to be added to the Current Bills of $43,621.50 thus making the 

new total $49,935.70. Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote. 

 

Motion by Dye, seconded by Scott, to approve the Accounts Payable Current Bills to $49,935.70.  Motion 

carried by unanimous roll call vote. 

 

 



  DRAFT UNAPPROVED MINUTES  

Acme Township Board of Trustees June 03, 2014 Page 2 of 4 
 

B. Kelley, Ridgecrest, referred to LaPointe’s comments regarding the Community Plan in the 5/13/14 Board 

meeting.  Kelley offered a different interpretation then LaPointe but was not going to quibble over it.  Kelley 

appreciated the due diligent on LaPointe’s behalf. 

 

Motion by White, seconded by LaPointe to approve the 5/13/14 Board minutes as presented.  Motion 

carried by unanimous roll call vote. 

 

F. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS/DISCUSSIONS: None 

  

 Trustee, Scott, stated that the new fire truck for Station 8 has arrived.  This is the first brand new one since 1980. 

 

G. REPORTS: Received and filed 

1. USheriff’s Report – Deputy: Ken Chubb   

2. County Commissioner’s Report – Larry Inman: 

3.  Road commission report-Bill Mouser 

        

H. CORRESPONDENCE: None 

             

I.          PUBLIC HEARING: Acme township Annual Budget discussion and approval 

 Budget Resolutions to be approved 

                  1.      Resolution # R-2014-15- Supervisor’s Salary 

Zollinger recused himself and turned the gravel over to the Clerk Dye. 

 

Motion by LaPointe, seconded by Scott to pass Resolution # 2014-15 that the salary of the office of         

Supervisor shall be $37,000. Motion carried by a roll call vote  of 6 in favor (Aukerman, Dye, Scott, 

LaPointe, Jenema, White) and 1 abstaining (Zollinger) 

 

                    2.     Resolution # R-2014-16 Clerk’s Salary 

 

                     Zollinger reassumed the gavel and Dye recused herself. 

 

Motion by LaPointe, seconded by Aukerman to approve Resolution #2014-16 that states the salary of 

the Clerk shall be $37,008. Motion carried by a roll call vote of 6 in favor (Aukerman, Jenema, 

LaPointe, Scott,  White, Zollinger) and 1 abstaining (Dye). 

 

3.      Resolution # R-2014-17 Treasurer’s Salary 

Dye rejoined the Board and Jenema recused herself. 

 

Motion by Scott, seconded by Jenema to pass Resolution # 2014-17 that states the salary of the 

Treasurer   shall be $25,159. Motion carried by a roll call vote of 6 in favor (Zollinger, Scott, White, 

Dye, LaPointe, Aukerman) and 1 abstaining (Jenema) 

 

                     4.      Resolution # R-2014 - Trustees’ Salaries 

LaPointe began a discussion on dropping the $50.00 per diam for additional meetings. 

 

Motion by LaPointe, Seconded by White to amend Resolution # 2014-18 that states the salary of the 

office    of Trustees shall be $6,000.00 with no $50.00/meeting per diem for additional meetings where 

the Board has requested their attendance. Motion failed by a roll call vote of 2 in favor 

(LaPointe,White) and 5 opposing (Zollinger, Scott, Jenema,  Dye, Aukerman). 

 

Motion by Scott, seconded by Aukerman to approve Resolution # 2014-18 that states the salary of the 

office of Trustees shall ne $6,000.00 with a $50.00/meeting per diam for additional meetings where the 

Board has requested.  Motion carried by a roll call vote of 6 in favor (Aukerman, Dye, Jenema, Scott, 

White, Zollinger) and 1 opposing (LaPointe) 

 

 



  DRAFT UNAPPROVED MINUTES  

Acme Township Board of Trustees June 03, 2014 Page 3 of 4 
 

                5.       Resolution # R-2014 - 19  Fiscal Year 2014-15 Budget approval 

                               Reviewed with discussion 

 

                       Motion by LaPointe, seconded by White to approve Resolution # R- 2914-19 as presented. Motion 

                       carried by unanimous roll call vote. 

      

           

J. NEW BUSINESS: 

 1.        Acme  Township Escrow policy up dates and fee schedule/Escrow Deposits 

            In an effort to prevent Acme Township taxpayers from baring the cost of processing an application for 

           Planning Commission, Township Board or Zoning Board of Appeals the Township has established a 

           Escrow Policy.  Board reviewed and discussed the changes in the policy. 

                         

                        Motion by Scott, seconded by LaPointe  to approve the amended Escrow Policy with corrections as 

                        presented.  Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote. 

 

 2.        Resolution to amend the election salaries in the Clerk’s department.  

              

                         Motion by Jenema, seconded by LaPointe to approve Resolution # R-2014-19 as presented. Motion 

                         carried by unanimous roll call vote. 

 

             3.        Approval of Metro Act Right of Way Permit Extension with AT&T  

 

                         Motion by LaPointe, seconded by Jenema to approve the Metro Act Right of Way Permit with 

                         AT&T. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 

K.      OLD BUSINESS: 

           1.        2% Tribal Grants 

          Zollinger stated that we have five applications for the Grand Traverse Band 2% Grant application cycle 

                      ending June 30, 2014. 

           a)    Acme Water system engineering -$ 126,000.00 

                       b)    Bayside Parking Lot improvements - $ 22,134.00 

                       c)     Sayler Park Boat Launch - $ 39,448.00 

                       d)    Yuba School new roof - $ 15,000.00 

                       e)     Hoxsie House - $ 27,377.00 

 

                       Motion by Scott, seconded by Aukerman to forward the five applications to the 2% June Tribal 

                       Grant cycle.  Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

                  

             2.       Hoxsie House Status 

                       Zollinger stated that the Hoxsie House package requesting an extension has been submitted to the DNR. 

                       A big thank you to Project Manager, Noelle Knopf, for bringing this together. 

 

             3.      Update on SAD/Road commission matching funds 

                       LaPointe attended a meeting last week with the Road Commission. It was thought that a determination 

                       would be made regarding the amount of funding for the SAD.  Instead the Road Commission talked about  

                       all the projects to be done and the lack of revenue to do them. It has now been delayed a month or two. 

                       LaPointe stated that without the funding the SAD will not happen in 2015. 

 

             4.       Status of proposed parliamentary procedures 

Dye stated that a draft email had just gone out today to the Board.  She asked if the Board would review,      

make suggestions and bring to the next regular scheduled meeting. 

 

              5.       Response to the cease and desist from Collett’s attorney 

             LaPointe read the 5/20/14 letter from Collett’s attorney demanding the response on our website to the 

                        “Allegations” made in the Record Eagle earlier this Spring be removed immediately.  



  DRAFT UNAPPROVED MINUTES  

Acme Township Board of Trustees June 03, 2014 Page 4 of 4 
 

                        Discussion followed. 

              

           Motion by Scott, seconded by Zollinger to not respond to the letter and move forward.  Motion 

                       carried by 6 in favor ( Aukerman, Dye, Jenema,White, Scott, Zollinger) and 1 opposed (LaPointe) 

  

 

 

 PUBLIC COMMENT & OTHER BUSINESS THAT MAY COME BEFORE THE BOARD:  

 

             K. Bolhuis, 4159 Williamston Ct, commented on the Autumn Olive that is EVERYWHERE. 

 

Runhaugh, 3733 Bunker Hill Road, suggested that a “traveling mike” be provided for the Board. 

 

 

            Adjourn at 9:35 p.m 



  DRAFT UNAPPROVED  

Acme Township Board of Trustees June 12, 2014 Page 1 of 2 
 

 

     ACME TOWNSHIP SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

ACME TOWNSHIP HALL 

 6042 Acme Road, Williamsburg MI 49690 

 Thursday, June 12, 2014, 4:00 p.m. 
 

 

UMEETING CALLED TO ORDER WITH THE PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AT 4:05 p.m. 

 

Members present: J. Aukerman, C. Dye, A. Jenema, G. LaPointe,  J. Zollinger 

Members excused: P. Scott, D. White 

Staff present:  N. Edwardson, Recording Secretary 

 

A. LIMITED PUBLIC COMMENT: 

Kelley, Ridgecrest, expressed concerns about the special meetings that the Board has held and would like to see a  

video of our meetings on line. Kelley suggested that this become an item on the July agenda. 

 

T. Philips, 2986 Wild Juniper Trail, also expressed concerns about the special meetings. He would encourage the 

Board to think about two meetings a month. 

 

Supervisor, Zollinger, commented that the Board has discussed having two meetings a month.  He said we will 

add it to the July agenda. 

 

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  

 

Motion by Jenema, seconded by LaPointe to approve the agenda as presented. Motion carried by 

unanimous roll call vote. 

 

 C.         INQUIRY AS TO CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: None 

 

 D. CONSENT CALENDAR: The purpose is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial items together for 

one Board motion (roll call vote) without discussion. A request to remove any item for discussion later in the 

agenda from any member of the Board, staff or public shall be granted. 

 

        1. ACTION – Consider approval:  

1. Accounts Payable Prepaid  $611.49 and Current $14,597.66  to be approved   

 (Recommend approval: Cathy Dye, Clerk) 

 

Jenema asked about the three Wyant Computer Services invoices. Zollinger stated that two of the  

invoices were for repair of the existing old service and the other was the monthly lease charge. 

 

Motion by LaPointe, seconded by Aukerman to approve the consent calendar as presented. Motion 

carried   by unanimous roll call vote. 

 

 E.    NEW BUSINESS: 

1.          Approval of Resolution for MDNR Grant Sayler Park 

             Zollinger said that this resolution was from the MDNR stating that Acme Township accepts the terms 

             of the agreement received  from MDNR on Sayler Park. 

               

              Motion by LaPointe, Seconded by Jenema to approve Resolution R # 2014-21 as presented.  Motion 

              carried by unanimous roll call vote. 

 

2.          Potential Funds Allocations for Township fund Balances 

             1.        Sad Districts 

             2.        Acme Water engineering Project 



  DRAFT UNAPPROVED  

Acme Township Board of Trustees June 12, 2014 Page 2 of 2 
 

             3.        Engineering project Management/review 

 

             Zollinger said the Board finds it important and prudent to demonstrate to the taxpayers why General Fund 

reserves are built up and how they might be used to promote larger projects for the general welfare and 

benefit of the community instead of or in addition to requests for additional mileages. This resolution will 

             adopt  a schedule of potential fund balance allocations as June 12, 2014. Allocations should not be viewed 

as a firm commitment to spend township funds, but as a general guideline for community projects. 

             Discussion followed. 

 

 

         Motion by Jenema, seconded by LaPointe to approve Resolution # R 2014-22 as presented.  

         Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote. 

 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT & OTHER BUSINESS THAT MAY COME BEFORE THE BOARD:  

 

ADJOURN AT  5:00  pm 













 Administrator/Controller Report 
June 2014 

 

Strategic Goals 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Boardman River Dams Project (8) 
 

 The Boardman and Sabin Dam Removals proposal has been awarded $100,000 from 
the Great Lakes Basin Fish Habitat Partnership through the Federal Fish and Wildlife 
Service. 
 

Commission on Aging (7) 
 

 Deputy Director Hired 
We are pleased to announce that the Commission on Aging In-Home Services Division 
has hired Laura Green to fill the vacant Deputy Director position. Laura previously 
worked for Sylvan Learning in Traverse City (two years), and prior to that, worked for 
Bay Aging (Area Agency on Aging) in Urbanna, Virginia, doing very similar work to what 
she will be doing for the Commission on Aging. She brings with her a great deal of 
experience working with senior citizens and we are happy to have her on board.  

 
 Senior Center Renovation Project 

Senior Center staff met with the architect to discuss essential elements for the 
renovation.  Drawings will be brought to the GTCOA Board, the City Commission, and 
County Board of Commissioners for approval. The Friends of the Senior Center group is 
still meeting.  Their goal is to raise the remaining funds needed for the project. The 
group had originally recommended $500,000 for the project; however, are now 
recommending $1,000,000. The plan is to break ground in the spring of 2015. The 
architect is looking at bumping out one wall, perhaps towards the water. A great deal of 
infrastructure has to be addressed/updated.  Engineers have done a walk through.   

   
 Hoarding Task Force  
 A Hoarding Task Force has been formed in Grand Traverse County. The first meeting 

was held May 9, 2014.  Inspector Darren Johnson, Orange County, and star of the 
television show “Hoarders,” spoke to our group via video conference call. He shared 
history and his experiences in regard to hoarding. In Orange County, they categorize 
levels of hoarding (visual and written) and they meet monthly to address individual 
situations. They take a compassionate, service-oriented approach and have an 80% 

1. Maintain financial strength and stability 
2. Strengthen and expand the County’s use of technology 
3. Address infrastructure needs 
4. Continue community engagement and access to information 
5. Ensure that County is viewed as a fair and equitable employer 
6. Expand the capabilities of the Board of Commissioners 
7. Advance the health and quality of life of the region 
8. Protect and preserve County’s water resources, forests, natural areas and scenic beauty 

 



2 
 

success rate. Meredith Hawes, Grand Traverse Metro Fire, is heading up the task force.  
Hoarding has been a concern of the Commission on Aging for many years, and 
continues to be very difficult to address for a number of reasons. The Health Department 
and the Area Agency on Aging, among many other organizations, are also involved. The 
next meeting is June 13, 2014. More to follow. 

  
Equalization (1) 

 

 Assessed values, as county equalized, have now been state equalized at their 
preliminary meeting.  Final state equalization is expected to occur with no change to the 
assessed values as county equalized. 
 

 The Headlee millage roll back calculations are complete.  Two townships, Long Lake 
and Mayfield, will receive a slight roll back, and all other jurisdictions will have no roll 
back in the millage collected. 

 
 The new reporting of small business personal property loss is being implemented.  The 

new sequence of reports have caused an additional burden to staff. 
 

Facilities (3) 
 

 The synagogue located adjacent to the courthouse is putting an addition on the building 
this summer.  We have authorized them to adjoin to our existing sidewalk with their new 
entrance.  
 

 We are meeting on June 10 with Ray Kendra to discuss his assistance with the five year 
capital improvements plan.  

 
Finance (1) 
    

 Audit fieldwork has been completed and we are waiting for a draft of our financial 
statements. One item that has delayed the completion of the audit was the need to do an 
OPEB valuation for post-employment benefits offered by the Grand Traverse Pavilions.  
This analysis has been received and we should be able to complete the audit and file it 
with the State by June 30, 2014.  
 

 The internal department budget manual and related documents were updated during the 
month for departmental use as we start the 2015 Budget process. 

 
 Met with a representative of Munson Healthcare to discuss a potential financing through 

the County Hospital Finance Authority. 
 

 Attended a MERS training session on May 21 regarding their revised actuarial 
valuations.  These valuations provide us with an annual update regarding our defined 
benefit pension plan.  The revised format of these reports is intended to provide us with 
additional information regarding this pension plan.  We anticipate that we will receive our 
December 31, 2013 valuation sometime in June.   
 

 We have also received notice from John Axe that he has started the process to request 
a two-year extension of Public Act 329 of 2012.  Proposed Senate Bill No. 922 would 
extend the sunset clause on the current legislation to December 31, 2016 and will also 



3 
 

permit the refunding of these bonds as the current law contains no provision permitting 
the issuance of refunding bonds after December 31, 2014. 

 
Health Department & Emergency Management (7) 

 
ADMINISTRATION & FINANCE DIVISION 
 

 Medical Examiner’s Office  
 Met with area funeral homes to discuss cremation permits, waivers, transport fees for 

medical examiner autopsy cases and process for handling unclaimed bodies. 
 

 Coordinated with Ingham County’s medical examiner staff to provide training for new 
deputy medical examiners, diener/office manager and medical examiner 
investigators (EMS from Northflight and Blair Township Fire). 

 

 Working on a new medical examiner pamphlet for families whose loved ones are 
considered medical examiner cases so they understand what to expect with the 
process. 

 

 Continuing to coordinate with Munson on morgue issues and possible expansion. 
 

 Agroterrorism Full Scale Exercise 
 

 The Health Department participated in this exercise in order to learn and gain 
experience with incident command and new roles for management staff.   
 

 Administration and Finance Director 

 The interview team completed the process for the second time and made an offer to 
an excellent candidate.  Unfortunately, this candidate was also looking for a 
significantly higher wage rate. 
 

 Northwest Michigan Water Safety Network 

 The health department hosted its first expanded meeting with at least 15 key 
agencies in attendance.  We will be addressing all aspects of water safety via a 
collective impact model.  The group will seek additional funding from grants and local 
organizations to tack the three main areas of outreach and education, water quality 
and beach safety signage/equipment and water safety classes.  Each organization 
brings a unique perspective to the table and collectively will have more impact than 
each organization working on its own. 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH & ANIMAL CONTROL DIVISION 
 

 EH hosted a meeting of the Beach Monitoring Stakeholders group to discuss the 
2014 beach monitoring season.  It was determined that the start date for monitoring 
our public beaches on East and West Grand Traverse Bays will begin on June 11 
and continue for approximately 13 weeks. 
 

 EH hosted and taught a one-day ServSafe Class for 29 area foodservice managers. 
The eight-hour class is taught by our food inspection staff, who are all certified 
instructors through the National Restaurant Association, Educational Foundation.  At 



4 
 

the conclusion of the class, students are given an exam and must pass with at least 
a 75% to become a certified food manager.    

 
 Animal Control 

 Our Animal Control Officers are busy this month completing their 2014 annual dog 
kennel inspections and licensing.  In Grand Traverse County, we have 24 licensed 
dog kennels. 

 
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT & PREPAREDNESS DIVISION 

 
 Emergency Management  

 Participated in a two-day, full scale exercise dealing with an agroterrorism incident 
with several area public safety agencies as well as the National Guard 51st Civil 
Support Response Team. Exercise components included a live (simulated) chemical 
release, response and identification by area hazardous materials teams, large scale 
incident command, and an Emergency Operations Center activation. 
 

 Severe Weather preparedness information including quick link QRS code for 
CodeRED app was distributed to area State Campgrounds. Each registering camper 
will receive an informative three-point process in order to prepare for severe weather 
notifications while visiting Grand Traverse County.  

 

 Met with the Northwest Michigan Fair Board in order to assist their organization with 
an emergency operations and evacuation plan for events being held at the 
fairgrounds.  

 

 Helped the Bayshore Marathon administration develop and implement an evacuation 
plan of the Peninsula area for their event during Memorial Day weekend.  

 

 All Grand Traverse County Schools finished their spring lockdown exercises. 
Meeting with County school officials to prepare for legislative changes that have 
come into effect. All schools are now required to conduct three lockdown drills during 
the school year and the County’s Emergency Management Coordinator is now 
responsible for reporting compliance of all drills to the state.  

 
 Emergency Preparedness 

 Organized and led the Health Department’s participation in the Full Scale Exercise 
with the 51 Civil Support Team. 
 

 Continue planning efforts with the USPS in advance of a full scale terrorism exercise 
at their Traverse City plant this summer. 

 
COMMUNITY HEALTH DIVISION 
 
DISEASE CONTROL AND PREVENTION PROGRAMS:   
 

 Communicable Disease Program - There is an increased concern for vaccine 
preventable diseases such as measles and mumps with large outbreaks in neighboring 
States.  We have communicated information to area physicians and the public.  We have 
been following the Middle Eastern Coronavirus with the occurrence of a few cases in the 



5 
 

U.S and have communicated information to area physicians and the public.  We did a 
press release about safe cooking and handling of meat related to the recent outbreak in 
Michigan and the large recall of ground beef from a Michigan Company. 
 

 Adolescent Clinics - In the last stages of planning for “Go Live” implementation to 
Electronic Health Records (EHR) at our two sites.  Held Community Advisory Meetings 
for both clinics.  Satisfaction survey results reflect overall 98 % of students are “very 
satisfied” with our clinics and 100% reported they would recommend our clinics to a 
friend.   

 
MATERNAL AND CHILD HEALTH PROGRAMS: 
 

 Maternal Infant Health Program (MIHP) 
 

 The Michigan Department of Community Health conducted a certification review of 
MIHP April 24 and 25; successfully received full certification for the next 18 months.  
All program employees are to be commended for their efforts to correct all previous 
unmet indicators. 
 

 Challenges over the past month have been to continue the momentum of ongoing 
quality assurance activities to stay current and decrease documentation errors along 
with maintaining an overall monthly encounter goal of 300 visits with team average 
per day of 3.5.  

 
 Healthy Futures  

 Began strategic planning with Health Department program staff to review Healthy 
Futures vision, mission, and values, which has lead us to conduct a SWOT 
(Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities, and Threats) analysis so that we can 
identify gaps in care provision and initiatives to implement over this next year. 
 

 Children’s Special Health Care Services (CSHCS) 
 

 Began analysis of program hours, identifying missed opportunities to provide case 
management and care coordination service and developing a strategic action plan to 
enhance the services to client population as qualified through the benefit program. 

 
 Immunizations 

 

 Grand Traverse County currently ranks 4th in the State for Flu Vaccinations for ages 
6 months through age 17 and is recognized by the State as a Top LHD implementing 
best practice activities.  
 

 More than four million Americans are living with chronic hepatitis and may not know 
it. In observation of May being Hepatitis Awareness Month and May 19 being 
National Hepatitis Awareness Day, the Michigan Department of Community Health 
(MDCH) and the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) are encouraging 
families to protect themselves from Hepatitis by being informed.  Hepatitis A and B 
vaccines are recommended for all children in Michigan. Both vaccines are also 
recommended for adults who are at risk of infection and for those who want to be 



6 
 

protected from getting Hepatitis A Virus and Hepatitis B Virus. Grand Traverse 
County rate for Hepatitis A in children runs 61% ranking 12th in the State. 

 
Human Resources (5)  

 
 General Fund positions approved by County Administrator/Controller (5) 

 Circuit Court Specialist - Circuit Court Administration 1 FTE 

 Correctional Officer - Sheriff's Office  1 FTE 

 Office Clerk- Family Court Volunteer Office 1 FTE 

 Detective – Sheriff’s Office 1 FTE 

 Deputy – Sheriff’s Office 1 FTE 

 Lifeguard WSI – Parks and Rec 1 FTE 

 County Clerk – Office Specialist 1 FTE 
 

 City/County held a joint blood drive in memory of Sgt. Dennis Finch and it was a 
success! Total registered donors was 54, and 46 units were collected, which included 10 
first-time donors! (7)  
 

 Nationwide Rep Chris Minkin held a “Lunch and Learn” in May with a nice response. (7) 
 

 Seasonal staff came on board this month for Facilities, Sheriff’s Office, and interns at the 
Friend of the Court and IT. (5)  
 

 The County Relay for Life Team has raised just over $6,000, well in excess of their 
$5000.   Thank you to Laurie Johnston and Al Clifford for their fundraising efforts this 
month. Laurie organized a garage sale netting $250 and Al organized a cake sale and 
chocolate chip cookie sale for Relay for Life team netting $962! 
 

 The Grand Traverse County Community Volunteer of the Year was selected and named 
at the April 30 Board meeting. Congratulations to Mike Reed from the IT department! 

 
 Making a Difference quarterly winner was Deb Deering from the Health Department.  

Congrats Deb and enjoy four hours off with pay for going above and beyond and making 
a difference! 
 

 Wellness Team - The City of Traverse City is joining Grand Traverse County in their 
2014 efforts at the Wellness Expo this year!  

 
Information Technology 
 

 An online Help Desk has been implemented to allow departments to submit and track IT 
support requests. The online ticket system will allow IT to better manage support 
requests along with providing statistics for benchmarking. The system will also provide 
documentation for all enrollment changes which County auditors have been requesting. 
Rich Pantano (IT Technician) successfully implemented the online Help Desk for the 
Health Department which is now being expanded to all departments. 
 

 The Senior Center has been setup with a permanent, secure connection to the County 
network allowing for easier sharing of information with the Commission on Aging and 



7 
 

other departments. 
 

 All court video recording computers were replaced which provides better performance 
and an upgrade from Windows XP to Windows 7. 
 

 Two new document imaging servers have been implemented and services are being 
migrated from the old servers. The new servers provide increased storage and 
performance and will support the upgrade of the document imaging software from 
OnBase 10 to OnBase 13. 
 

 IT staff coordinated and managed the upgrade of the City’s utility billing software with the 
City’s vendor – HTE. 
 

 The State of MI has provided 28 computers for the FOC and Prosecutor to replace aging 
XP computers used for accessing State systems.   
 

 The City Police Dept. has purchased a network storage system (NAS) for backup 
storage of their videos from in-car cameras.  

 
MSUE (7, 8) 
 

 Senior Market FRESH began coupon distribution May 23 at the Traverse City Senior 
Center on East Front Street. MSU Extension provides nutrition information to 
participating seniors on the benefits of eating more fruits and vegetables, which can be 
purchased using their coupons at local farmers’ markets.  Project FRESH will begin 
coupon distribution June 24 at the Grand Traverse County Health Department. MSU 
Extension and WIC will be providing coupons and nutrition education to help increase 
WIC families’ intake of fruits and vegetables while using their coupons at local farmers’ 
markets. 

 
 May was a busy month for local wine grape growers, trying to get caught up with 

pruning, a task that would normally have been done before the end of April.  The 
persistent snow cover kept growers from starting at the usual time.  It was also a   
difficult year for deciding how to prune grapes, as the high levels of bud mortality from 
the severely cold temperatures and in January and February called for modifications to 
the usual practices.  Duke Elsner, MSU Extension Small Fruit Educator, spent       
several days in May applying different pruning strategies in the wine grape research and 
demonstration plots at the Northwest Michigan Horticultural Research Center.  Growers 
will be able to observe the resulting vine growth patterns to see how particular pruning 
practices may help vineyards recover from severe cold injury. 

 
Parks and Recreation (7) 

 PRN and Expo Update 
The GTRec Experience Expo was held on Sunday May 4, in Howe Arena.  The event 
had approximately 300 members from the public and over 30 vendors.  In addition to the 
expo in Howe Arena, there were demonstrations at Easling Pool on standup paddle 
boarding and yoga standup paddle boarding by SUP Michigan, sailing by Grand 
Traverse Area Community Sailing, and rescue swimming by United States Coast Guard 
Rescue Swimmers.   An evaluation of the event has been sent to each of the vendors to 



8 
 

gather input for improving next year’s event.  This year’s expo received fewer visitors, 
but had more vendors.   

The Parks and Recreation Network thanks Blue Cross Blue Shield of Michigan for its 
sponsorship the GTRec Experience Expo and its interest in being involved again next 
year.   
 
The Parks and Recreation Network, of which Grand Traverse Parks and Recreation is 
the backbone organization, continues to see an increase in new attendees during  its 
last two meetings held on April 10 and April 15.  A total of 12 new individuals, 
representing nine organizations have attended either last month or this month.  At least 
two of the organizations have been authorized to pay to join the www.GTRec.org 
website. 

 
 Pitch, Hit, and Run 

Parks and Recreation Department was approached by Northern Broadcasting about 
becoming a partner for its Pitch, Hit, and Run Competition.  This event is national and 
sponsored by Scotts, Pepsi, and Major League Baseball similar to the Punt, Pass, and 
Kick Program.  During the planning process, the Parks and Recreation Department 
suggested that American Legion be included in the event.  The event, held at the Civic 
Center on the same day as the GTRec Experience Expo on May 4, was sponsored 
locally by Northern Broadcasting, Play It Again Sports, Williams Chevrolet, American 
Legion, and Grand Traverse County Parks and Recreation.  Eight (8) children competed. 

 
 Carter’s Kids and Kids Kove 

Carter’s Kids (CK), a foundation founded by Carter Oosterhouse that creates 
community-built playgrounds, contacted the Parks and Recreation Department in early 
May about building a $60,000 tot-lot at the Civic Center on August 9, the day after CK’s 
annual golf outing.  Because replacement of Kids Kove on the Civic Center property is 
identified in the Parks and Recreation Capital Improvement Program and in the Civic 
Center Master Plan, the Parks and Recreation Department wishes to leverage the 
$60,000 donation from CK and the $9,000 winnings from the MI Big Green Gym 
challenge of last year to re-develop the entire playground.    

 
CK specifically works on its playgrounds with Sinclair Recreation (a Michigan-based 
company).  Sinclair has been contacted to come to the Civic Center and provide a quote 
for replacing the wooden structures at Kids Kove with a Universally Accessible 
playground.   

 
The Parks and Recreation Director has asked the Parks and Recreation Commission for 
permission to focus his attention over the next 30 days on obtaining funding to leverage 
the $69,000 to replace Kids Kove. 

 
 Skate Park Fence Update 

The Skate Park fence removal project is complete.  SEEDS was the lowest bidder and 
selected by the Facilities Management Department to do the work, which began on   
May 6.  It has been reported that, since the fence came down, the Skate Park appears 
more open and inviting to families. 

 
 E-cigarettes 



9 
 

During its April 2014 meeting, the Parks and Recreation Commission made a motion to 
“direct staff to ask Prosecuting Attorney to put together verbiage that would add e-
cigarettes to any location that currently bans cigarettes and tobacco, then revisit it from 
there if we have to expand it.”   
 
Since April, the Parks and Recreation Department and Commissioner Grams have 
worked with Chris Forsyth at the Prosecuting Attorney’s Office to research how other 
states and counties are working to ban e-cigarettes. Forsyth has agreed to draft park 
rules language to prohibit the use of e-cigarettes on Civic Center property.  The 
language to be developed will prohibit the use of the e-cigarettes, not the possession of 
e-cigarettes.  According to the Forsyth, E-cigarettes may be used for legal substances, 
therefore they are not comparable to drug paraphernalia, so the outright ban of 
possession would be hard to defend in the event the rule were to be challenged.   

 
During its May 2014 regular meeting, the Parks and Recreation Commission passed a 
motion to encourage the Prosecuting Attorney’s Office to continue researching the 
appropriate language to prohibit the use of e-cigarettes at the Civic Center.  

 
 Facilities Management Capital Improvement Plan 

The Parks and Recreation Department was asked to submit any projects foreseen over 
the next five years to Facilities Management’s five-year capital improvement plan, which 
is submitted to the Board of Commissioners and used to plan for capital projects during 
its term.  With approximately 24 hours of lead time for this project, Parks and Recreation 
submitted several items identified in the Parks and Recreation Capital Improvement 
Program, the Civic Center Master Plan, and the Maple Bay Master Plan.   

 
Facilities Management and Parks and Recreation departments discussed coordinating 
these projects in the specific years identified, and how they will fit sequentially for each 
property and with the other projects Facilities Management already identified throughout 
the County.   

 
The report, as submitted to County Administration, fulfills the measurements designated 
within the 2014-2015 Grand Traverse County Parks and Recreation Strategic Plan.   

 
 TCAPS Freshmen Water Safety Training 

On May 16, the last two sessions of TCAPS Freshmen Water Safety Training were held 
at the Civic Center, hosting T.C. West students.  There was a morning session and an 
afternoon session.  Fifteen (15) of the students in the morning session opted to come 
back for the afternoon session because they enjoyed the training so much.  The total 
number of TCAPS students trained throughout the 2013-2014 school year is 323. 
 

 Pool Fees 
Because the County Board of Commissioners has suggested that the Parks and 
Recreation Commission consider raising Easling Pool fees, during its March 2014 
regular meeting, the Parks and Recreation Commission directed the Parks and  
Recreation Director to provide a plan for a new Easling Pool fee structure, to meet the 
following parameters: 
 

1.  Compare Civic Center fees to the new YMCA’s fees 
 2.  Set County residents’ fees lower than those of the YMCA 
 3.  Out-of-county residents would pay 30% more than residents 



10 
 

 
During its regular April 2014 meeting, the Director presented a table to the Parks and 
Recreation Commission comparing the fees for Easling Pool with those of the new 
YMCA pool.  Easling Pool’s current fees are significantly lower than those of the YMCA.  
The Director also compared Easling Pool prices to: 
 

1. Cadillac YMCA 
2. Charlevoix Pool 
3. Hastings Area Schools Pool 
4. Hamilton Area Schools Pool 
5. Kalkaska Kaliseum 

 
When factoring in the Cadillac YMCA, Easling Pool fees are below average.  When the 
Cadillac YMCA is taken out of the average, Easling Pool fees are higher than average in 
all categories, with the exception of a six-month “Senior” membership and a six-month 
“Family” membership.  However, Easling Pool fees are within $10 and $2, respectively. 
 
As a starting point, during its regular May 2014 meeting, the Parks and Recreation 
Director gave commissioners a proposed fee structure including a five (5) percent and a 
ten (10) percent option with, as previously directed by the Commission, all out-of-county 
rates 30% higher than in-county rates.  The proposed fees still are significantly lower 
than the new YMCA fees. 

 
During its May 2014 meeting, the Parks and Recreation Commission passed a motion to 
refer the matter of raising pool fees to its Civic Center Grounds Fees Ad Hoc Committee. 

 
 Twin Lakes Rules Change 

Per the Parks and Recreation Commission’s request during its April 2014 meeting, the 
Prosecuting Attorney’s Office presented options in its April 28, 2014 memo for changing 
Rule 15 of the Parks and Recreation Park Rules from a misdemeanor to a civil infraction.  
The Parks and Recreation Commission passed a motion during its regular May 2014 
meeting to pursue at the state legislative level, changing current park rules to civil, 
municipal infractions, and to direct the County to adopt an ordinance so that in the 
future, the Twin Lakes beach rule pertaining to only swimming in designated areas can 
be enforced as a civil infraction rather than as a misdemeanor. 
 
The Parks and Recreation Director will pursue this endeavor with Howard Walker and 
Wayne Schmidt, and work with MRPA and MACPRO to make the change.  The Parks 
and Recreation Director will ask the Prosecuting Attorney’s office to also put something 
together for County Commission. 
 

 Twin Lakes Beach 
During its March 2014 regular meeting, the Parks and Recreation Commission made a 
motion to “ask the Director to come back in April with additional safety measures that 
can be implemented at Twin Lakes, including beach design/location, location of 
docks/piers and other water access structures and improved signage.”  Clarifying 
discussion was held during the April 2014 regular Parks and Recreation Commission 
meeting and again during the agenda-setting meeting for May among the Director, the 
Parks and Recreation Commission President and Vice President.  
 



11 
 

During the Parks and Recreation Commission’s regular May 2014 meeting, the Parks 
and Recreation Director provided to commissioners the best practices manual, 
Water/Beach Safety Guidelines, published by the Michigan Municipal Risk Management 
Authority (MMRMA), which has guided the decisions during the past several years for 
safety measures taken at Twin Lakes.  The Parks and Recreation Commission is looking 
for greater expertise than can be found at the MMRMA or within the state regarding the 
beach design at Twin Lakes, and regarding the best safety practices associated with any 
new configuration of the beach/swim area.   
 
During its regular May 2014 meeting, the Parks and Recreation Commission passed a 
motion for the Director to solicit proposals from national and regional experts on safe 
beach design/location, and locations of docks/piers and other water access structures 
and improved signage. 

 
Planning/Brownfield/Economic Development/Housing (1, 3, 4, 7, 8) 
 
 The Department has been assisting the County Treasurer by inspecting and evaluating 

the recently tax foreclosed properties. There were 27 properties foreclosed this year.  
Most of the parcels are vacant land. 
 

 Department staff is taking proactive action to address the recent problems with the 
Homestretch portion of the Depot housing project in Traverse City.  Staff is working on a 
solution to the funding issue to get the project back on track and to avoid problems 
associated with future housing projects.  \ 

 
 Deputy Director Jean Derenzy spoke at the Michigan Women in Finance conference at 

the Grand Traverse Resort on May 16. Raymond Minervini joined Jean in presenting:  
“The Village at Grand Traverse Commons: A Community Endeavor.” 

 
Prosecuting Attorney 
 
 PROSECUTION 
 

 Authorized 149 misdemeanor warrants 

 Authorized 50 felony warrants 

 Authorized 20 juvenile warrants 

 Initiated 16 neglect/abuse cases (Our office has 54 open neglect/abuse cases 
involving 88 children) 

 Reviewed 22  referrals from the office of child support 

 Handled the following matters in Family Court: 

 6 paternity cases 

 13 child support cases 

 Obtained 6 judgments of child support 

 12 mentally ill commitment hearing 
   

CIVIL COUNSEL 
 
 Contract Drafting and Review 
 

 Jail Administration: One 



12 
 

 Central Dispatch: One 

 Parks and Recreation: One 

 Administration: One 
 
 FOIA Coordination 

 

 Central Dispatch: six 

 Health Department: two 
 

 Board of Commissioners/ Staff Questions 
 

 Sheriff  

 Health Department 

 Commission on Aging 

 Jail Administration 

 Treasurer 
 
 Litigation 

 

 Grand Traverse County v. Joseph J. King et al. On May 7th, we filed with the Circuit 
Court a complaint seeking reimbursement from 12 current and former inmates 
housed in the County Jail. Under the Prisoner Reimbursement to the County Act, 
MCL 801.81 et. seq., a County is permitted to file a lawsuit in Circuit Court seeking 
reimbursement from inmates, who are obligated to pay housing, medical and other 
expenses during incarceration. In total, we are seeking $25,505.21 in 
reimbursement. In the future, we will plan on filing a lawsuit a month seeking inmate 
reimbursement.  

 

 Parcel 80 BIA Appeal (12 acres).  We continue to await a decision from the Regional 
Director. 

 

 Parcel 82 BIA Appeal (158 acres).  We continue to wait for an opinion from the 
appeals board. 

 
 Miscellaneous 

 

 Working with the Facilities Management Department in renegotiating an easement 
for use of the First Baptist Church Parking Lot.  At issue is the county’s  
 

 Working with the Parks and Recreation Department to develop an e-cigarette ban at 
the Civic Center. 
 

 Working with County staff and Garfield Township officials in developing a strategy to 
defend a tax appeal involving Grand Traverse Mall. 
 

 Bob Cooney conducted OMA training for local elected and appointed board and 
commission members. 

 
Resource Recovery (8)  

 



13 
 

 The second Household Hazardous Waste Collection Event of 2014 took place on May 29 at 
the Grand Traverse County Department of Public Works Garage.  All available appointments 
for the event were booked. The next collection event takes place in mid-August. 
 

 Department staff attended the May meeting of the Regional Solid Waste Advisory 
Committee on May 27. Members reviewed tracking software that would replace the 
current department system of tracking recycling and waste volumes and is the same 
system being considered at the state level for statewide tracking. Members were 
provided a review of activities occurring at the state level by a regional member who sits 
on the Governor’s newly-appointed Michigan Recycling Council. 
 

 Staff recently announced that the 2014 RecycleSmart Kid’s Garage Sale will take place on 
Saturday, August 23, 2014. The event will be held at the Grand Traverse County Civic Center.  

 
Legislative Update 
 

 Gongwer reported on Friday that revenue sharing funds may be trimmed, although the 
article was rather vague.  Rep. Earl Poleski said Friday that the revised revenue 
estimates from the May revenue estimating conference will affect what ultimately 
happens with statutory revenue sharing when the conference committee on the general 
government budget meets on June 9. 

http://www.gongwer.com/index.cfm?link=bio.cfm&nameid=277401&locid=1


































































































 
  

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

July 1, 2014 
 
 

Consumer Power Project 
 
Line Up grade by Consumers Power: Project Boardman to Acme HVD Line 
 
Time Frame: Fall 2014 
 
Work follows existing line will require pole replacement with spans of about 350 
feet 
 
Power on line when completed about 69KVA 
 
A public meeting will be held for those affected. 
 
Contact: Doug DeYoung 
                  31-929-6234 
 
 
 
 

 

6042 Acme Road, Williamsburg, Michigan 49690  (231) 938-1350 
 











June 18, 2014 

 

Acme Study Team  

DRAFT Progress Report 

 

● As we’ve heard at previous Acme Township Board meetings, Chief Pat Parker is moving forward with 

plans to build a new Fire Station 8 – a much-needed, to-code update for Acme 

● Location and total costs have not been confirmed as yet 

● Acme’s township offices are housed in this 1950s building lacking adequate office space, privacy for 

resident and business meetings, and requiring sizable investment for updates 

● Question arose a few months ago:  Does it make sense for Acme to consider adding square footage on 

to a new Station 8 to house improved township offices?  Does it save money (rather than building a 

separate structure) to do so?   

● In May, Jay Zollinger formed a Study Team to investigate this question 

● Chief Pat Parker said he needed a yes/no decision from the Township by July 1 

● Team members were:  Gordie Lapoint (team leader) and Jean Aukerman from the Board; Roy 

Challender and Chuck Walter – both with construction experience; and Ken Crawford – with banking 

experience 

● The team has met four times including a tour of the Torch Lake Township building which is a 

combined fire station and township offices constructed in 2007/2008  

● Gordie Lapointe stepped off the team in mid-June to focus on Special Assessment District regarding 

Acme’s roads; Jean Aukerman assumed team leadership 

● In recent weeks, the team has solicited and obtained input from Chief Parker; Metro Fire’s architect of 

record, Jack Knol; Acme’s Planner, John Iacoangeli; and local commercial realtor 

● The following information has been gathered and the Study Team is requesting that the Acme Board 

agree for us to investigate further; here are relevant points for your consideration 

 

- New Fire Stations must meet strict codes for safety and performance 

- Combining these emergency utilities services with public offices – very different occupancies – may 

only enable minimal internal savings; hard to predict now 

- Chief Pat, as mentioned, is considering land now but has not yet made a final decision 

- Steve Smith, one of the developers at Grand Traverse Town Center, has offered land to both Metro Fire 

and Acme Township for offices – at no cost to either 

- Study Team believes that taxes should not be increased to afford a new township office, and price of 

land is a major contributor to cost 

- Therefore, Study Team feels “free” land at the Grand Traverse Town Center is a leading contender if the 

township builds new offices 

- Study Team has received enough input to believe that a joint building is not going to generate enough 

savings on internal infrastructure  

- Rather, the Team feels that, if the fire station and township offices were placed together on one 

adequately-sized parcel at the Grand Traverse Town Center, the two entities could share external 

infrastructure costs associated with parking, lighting, landscaping, snow removal, and maintenance fees 

- Solution would enable a “separate but together” public services center – with each maintaining its own 

identity while affording “community” feel and spaces for meetings and social gatherings  

- Chief Pat likes this possible solution – but, again, Metro Fire has not made a commitment to land as yet 

 

● The Study Team is requesting that the Board agree for us to investigate further and return with possible 

options and finance models for your consideration.   

● Please know that the Study Team makes no decisions; we are focused solely on soliciting information 

from experts and fact-finding so the Board can make final yes/no decisions 

 

# # # 


	070114 Final Board minutes 081314
	070114 Completed packet 081414
	070114 Board minutes rr 080414
	070114 Completed packet with minutes r
	070114 Completed packet for website
	070114 Agenda and Packet for website
	070114 Board Agenda
	070114 Treasurer's report
	070114 Clerk's Report
	070114 Clerk's Balance sheet
	070114 PC 060914 minutes
	070114 ZBA 061214 minutes
	070114 Henkel's report
	070114 Zoning & Planning Update
	070114 Metro Newsletter May 2014
	070114 Metro Newsletter June 2014
	070114 Bayside Park E. Coli Results
	070114 Board minutes 060314
	070114 Board minutes 061214
	070114 Prepaid Bills
	070114 Current Bills
	070114 County Admin report
	070114 Supervisors Appointments
	070114 Master Sanitary Sewer Study
	070114 Blue Water Trails
	070114 Horse Sports Park SUP
	070114 Consumers Power Project
	070114 Friends of Acme Farmland
	070114 Acme Study Team Progress report





